
February 21, 1948-James Maxwell and lula Mae Van Swoll. 
Bridesmaids, Jean Fields, Norma Anderson, Jean Van Swoll. Best 
hA.an, Fred Foshaug. Minister, C. A. Benshadler of Jehovah's Wit­
nesses. 

August 28, 1949-Bill Everman and Vera Hudson. Attendants, 
Henry Lucker, Dorothy Hudson. Minister, Rev. Orval Johnson of 
Methodist Church. 

December 4, 1952-Bill Stennick and Mary Walters. Attendants 
for Bride, Pat Watson, louisa Jensen. Best Man, Martin Benson. 
Minister, Rev. Martin. Family wedding. 

The building was used by other church groups. One was a mis­
sionary type church who have no formal name. With a Charter 
membership of 27, the Seventh Day Adventists used it from De­
cember 17, 1938, to October 21, 1957. The Church of Christ mem­
bers met there from 1968 to 1970. 

Sunday School as a community project discontinued in 1941. As 
Sunday School was not being conducted, one boy of the commu­
nit, Bert Parcher, not a member of S. D. A. church, received a Bible 
for a year's perfect attendance at Sabbath School. . 

Finally the church was left without anyone to care for it, as it 
was not being used. The Cemetery District, a tax supported organ­
ization, decided that it could use the building for funerals, if 
necessary, and was willing to buy it from the Methodists. Some 
felt it already belonged to this community. After much discussion 
and several meetings, the Cemetery District paid the Methodist 
Church in Rainier two hundred dbllars ($200) on January 4, 1960. 

The Cemetery District changed the name to Cemetery District 
Chapel and is taking care of the building and grounds, and permits 
anyone to use it for proper purposes who wish to do so. 

The story of Hudson Community Church is not just about a 
building, but the influence that its use had on the community. It 
helped set a pattern of living : "A Belief In God and His Presence 
With Us In Our Daily lives." 

LIFE OF CAPT. CRAMER J. GALLOWAY 
By RICHARD SPIRO, Oct. 8-9, 1966 

The more than 70 years spent on tugs, passenger boats and 
ferries that ranged the rivers of the Northwest have not dimmed 
Capt. Cramer J. Galloway's love for these inland waters. 

The large dining room window of his home in Rainier affords 
a superb view of the river' that was his workshop for so long a 
time. Rarely does the captain return home without stepping first 
to the window and scanning with binoculars the endless panorama 
of river traffic. 

He was born Aug . 26, 1883, on the piece of ground where the 
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longview Public library now stands. The town was called Freeport, 
head of navigation then, and site of the first schoolhouse in Cow­
litz County. 

His father, Johnny C. Galloway, operated the steam ferry, Alice 
V, that shuttled between Kelso and the Oregon shore. "I was prac­
tically born on the river," Galloway said, "and there was never 
much doubt about the career I would follow." 

That career began in earnest in 1897, when 14-year-old Cra 
mer Galloway went to work on the Nestor, a towboat owned by 
Capt. Milton Smith. A sternwheeler like all the other towboats of 
that era, the Nestor was engaged in the necessary task of hauling 
logs to the sawmills that lined the banks of the Cowlitz and Colum~ 
bia rivers. 

From that beginning, Galloway never looked back. There was 
the tug, Fanny, under Capt. Johnny Brown, the Cowlitz, Cascade, 
and the Vulcan, which offered him his first job as mate. When first 
built, it was the fastest boat on the river. 

He had received his mate's license in 1904, and the coveted 
master's license was issued shortly after World War I. "All my 
licenses were First Class," Galloway said, wi th justifiable pride. 

Capt. Milton Smith retired, his son, Wilbur, took over, then sold 
out to Shaver Transportation company in the early 1930s. Galloway 
worked for all these owners, including an 8-month stint for Shepard 
Towing company of St. Helens. 

During one phase of his career, Galioway was associated in 
another St. Helens based tug and barge enterprise with Hamlin 
McCormick, the man chiefly responsible for much of the industry 
that lends credence to the St. Helens' title, "The Payroll City." 

All the years on the river did not produce any adventures in the 
sense of disastrous sinkings or collisions, which, after all, is a 
tribute to the captain's skill and ability. Skippers who lose their 
commands are not likely to enjoy long careers as towboat men. 

There was adventure of a different sort in the competent per­
formance of the tasks that contributed to the Northwest's growth. 
Some of the work Galloway handled is no longer on the agenda 
of modern tugs. The huge cigar rafts, for example, that once were 
made up at Cathlamet Bay and taken over the bar, for ocean-going 
tugs to pick up and deliver to California ports. As captain of the 
louis ill, Galloway made many trips down river with the cigar­
shaped log rafts. 

And he served as captain, pilot or mate of the countless tow­
boats that hauled log rafts as we know them today - the Bailey 
Gatzert, once a passenger boat; Paloma, Wentworth, Hercules, 
Sampson, Biddle and the mighty logger, biggest and most power­
ful sternwheeler towboat ever to operate on the rivers of the 
Northwest. 

A sawdust burner, with doubl·e engines and a crew of 14, the 
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Logger was built at Rainier, and owned and operated by Capt. 
Milton Smith. It knew the Cowlitz as well as the Columbia, towing 
many a raft from Ostrander to the burgeoning sawmills. 

To gain experience, Galloway would switch from towboats to 
the steamers that plied the river. There was the Telephone, and 
the Harvest Queen, which knew Galloway as cub pilot. He made 
the Portland-The Dalles run on the Bailey-Gatzert, built in 1890 as a 
passenger boat, and converted into a tug in 1907. 

He was a young deck hand on boats that hauled wheat to Celilo, 
and Indians from the fishing grounds there to Umatilla. .Chief 
Tommy Thompson rode the boat often, and Galloway knew him 
well. "I was raised among the Ind ians," the captain reminisced, 
"and got along well with them. Thompson was a fine man­
friendly to white people." 

A sense of history pervaded the years - assignment on the St. 
Johns fe rry wh ile the now-familiar bridge was in process of con­
st ruction. And for three years Galloway pi loted the towboats, Her­
cules and Biddle, hauling rock from above Fisher's Landing near 
Vancouver for the building of the north jetty at Il waco, work 
that began in 1917. 

The years came and went with the tides, and change made itself 
apparent on the river . More and more, the diesel engine w as repl ac­
ing steam, and the sternwheelers gave way slowly, then more 
rapidly, to the propeller-driven tugs. 

Preferring the towboats he had known for more than a half­
century, Capt. Galloway turned to ferries that bridged the gap 
between Astoria and Megler. Starting in 1950, he served at vari­
ous times as captain, pilot and mate on the Chessman and Tour­
ists No.2 and 3. 

The Chessman was the biggest, designed originally to carry 400 
passengers and 45 automobiles. In its last days, it could still ac­
commodate the same number of human passengers, but automo­
biles have become larger and 40 of them were all that could be 
fitted aboard. 

Galloway enjoyed the tour of duty on the ferries . He likes to 
to meet people, particularly those from the different parts of the 
country. Many of those he met during the crossing of the Columbia 
still write to him. 

He especially enjoys children, and when his work permitted he 
could usually be found in the center of a group of interested and 
inquiring youngsters . 

He recalls one time, about 1955, carrying one of the medical 
Mayo brothers from Oregon to Washington. With his son, the 
doctor was en route to visit property he owned in Canada. 

Dedication of the new Astoria bridge on Aug . 27, 1966, sig­
naled the end of the ferries. As was entirely fitting, Galloway 
was an honored guest of Capt. Ole Lilloren in the Chessman's 
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pilot house during that final voyage. It was an honor he shared 
with Oregon's governor, Mark O. Hatfield. 

The fact is, had it not been for a fishing trip that resulted in 
his slipping on some rocks and injuring himself slightly, Galloway 
would have been aboard the ferry in an official capacity. 

Holder of Coast Guard License No. 10-12, as master of a steam 
or motor vessel on the Columbia river and its tributaries, Galloway 
is definitely not retired . He passed with flying colors the physical 
test when his license needed renewing in 1963. 

It is not likely that the captain's record of more than seventy 
years on Northwest rivers will ever be equalled. Young men tOday 
do not start careers at age 14 nor do many continue working into 
their 80s. Cramer Galloway's life has spanned much of the his­
lory of this reg ion . His friends are legion and those who know him 
deem themselves honored and privileged. 

The Rainier Review of Sept. 10, 1970, recorded the death of 
Capt. Cramer J. Galloway, caused by a heart attack on Sept. 7. 
He ha~ been fishing at the mouth of the Cowlitz river when he 
became ill. He died as he was brought back across the Columbia 
river to Rainier. The funeral was Sept. 10 at Rainier. 

TI1E FRANKLIN PIERCE RICE FAMILY 
Franklin Pierce Rice and his wife Martha and family came to 

Rainier from Carter County, Kentucky, on May 4, 1884. 
The Nicolai mill in Apiary employed men with bull teams to 

haul logs at $100 per month and board, which was a fine wage. 
Shared Rice, a relative, had sent for the Franklin Rice family to 
come and take advantage of such a fine job, but when they got 
here there was a slump in the market for cedar logs and they were 
only paying $60 net, there being only one mill operating at the 
time. The logs were hauled to Cedar Landing, cedar shakes being 
the only wood product then in demand. 

The family moved to what was known as the Adkins place at the 
top of Rainier hill. Mr. Rice bought up land, four yoke of bulls and 
some cattle and was in business. At one time their land included 
what is now known as the Stennick property. 

The family had four children, John, Herb, Watt and Elvida. John 
was ten years old when they came to Rainier and he was 85 years 
old when he related this bit of family history. 

The Rice family gave one-quarter ~cre and the Hudson family 
gave a quarter-acre to start the Hudson school, and they were 
also instrumental in starting the cemetery. 

John said that as a small boy he must care for and harness the 
bull team and take it to where his father was logging before get­
ting to school, and after school he must go get the team and drive 
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